
UNITED NATIONS 

Et~ONOMIU AND 
SOUI!L COUNCIL 
OFFICIAL RECORDS 

TWELFTH SESSION, 456 tb 
MEETING 

Tuesday, 6 March 1951, at 10.15 a.m. 

SANTIAGO, CHILE 

CONTENTS· 
Pag1 

Invitation to the Secretary-General of the League of Arab States to attend 
sessions of the Economic and Social Council (E/1938 and E/L.152) .... 155 

World economic situation (E/1907, E/1910, E/1910/ Add.l and 2, E/1912, 
. E/1912/Add.1 to 3 and E/C.2/280) (continued)........ . . . . ....... 1S6 

President: Mr. Hernan SANTA CRuz (Chile). 

Prestmt: The representatives of the following coun­
tries: 

Belgium, Canada, Chile, China, Czechoslovakia, France, 
India, Iran, Mexico, Pakistan, Peru, Philippines, 
Poland, Sweden, Union of Soviet Socialist Republics, 
United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern 
Ireland, United States of America, Uruguay. 

The representatives of the following spe­
cialized agencies: 

Intt:rnational Labour Organisation, United Nations 
Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization. 

Invitation to the Secretary-General of the League 
of Arab States to attend sessions of the Eco· 
nomic and Social Council (E/1938 and 
E/L.152) 

1. The PRESIDENT invited the Council to examine 
the question of an invitation to the Secretary-General of 
the League of Arab States which would permit him to 
attend sessions of the Council in the capacity of observer. 

2 .. Mr. BROHI (Pakistan) introduced his draft reso­
lution (E/1938). He pointed out that the draft was 
identical with General Assembly resolution 477 (V) 
adopted on 1 November 1950. 

3. The !.league of Arab States, established on 22 
March 1945, consisted of seven States, six of whi~h 
were Members of the United Nations, representing over 
40 million inhabitants; . those States were Egypt, the 
Hashimite Kingdom of the Jordan, Iraq, Lebanon, 
Saudi Arabia, Syria and Yemen. 

4. As no member of the League was currently repre­
sented on the Economic and Social Council, it would 
be equitable and appropriate to invite the Secretary­
~eneral of the League to attend sessions of the Council 
tn the capacity of observer. 

5. The economic situation of the Middle East was of 
major importance to the whole world; the Indian dele­
gation had shown its awareness of that fact in proposing 

the establishment of an economic commission for the 
Middle East. The suggestion had been warmly sup- · 
ported by the delegation of Pakistan. That was an 
additional reason for inviting the Secretary-General of 
the League of Arab States to take part in the work o{ 
the Council. 

6. Mr. ARROYO TORRES (Uruguay) supported 
the draft resolution submitted by Pakistan. The 
Uruguayan Government, true to its political traditions. 
believed that international organizations should give the 
closest attention to groups of countries which had not 
yet attained full economic and social development, as 
in the case of members of the League of Arab State~. 
Furthermore, th~ importance of the League in world 
affairs could not be ignored. The Uruguayan delegation 
would consequently vote in favour of the draft 

. resolution. 

7. Mr. ARDALAN (Iran) gave his enthusiastic 
support to the Pakistan draft resolution. The League 
of Arab States consisted of countries linked together by 
ancient ties of language and religion; it played an 
important part in the maintenance of peace and security 
in the Middle East. The members of the League of 
Arab States occupied a part of the region which also 
comprised Turkey, Pakistan and Iran, countries con ... 
nected with them by the same ties . of culture and 
tradition. 

8. Mr. FREI (Chile) and Mr. CABADA (Peru) 
supported the draft resolution for the same reasons as 
those given by the represent~tive of Uruguay. 

155 

9. Mr. LUBIN (United States of America) stated 
that he too would support the Pakistan draft resolution; 
he would like, however, to submit an amendment 
broadening the invitation in question to include a repre­
sentative of the Organization of American States. That 
amendment wou!d amend the draft resolution of 
Pakistan (E/1938) to read as follows: 

uThe Economic and Social Council 
uRequests the Secretary-General of the United 

Nations to invite the Secretary-General of the Leagtie 

E/SR.456 



156 Economic and Social Council- Twelfth Session 

of Arab States and the Secretary-General of the 
Organization of American States to attend the 
current session of the Economic and Social Council 
as observers." 

10. Mr. PARKINSON (Canada) thought that the 
Pakistan proposal was readily acceptable; however, the 
United States amendment complicated the situation, as 
it revealed the existence of a delicate question of pro­
cedure; would not the Council be establishing a 
precedent with unforeseeable consequences by inviting 
representatives of international organizations such as 
the League of Arab States and the Organization of 
American States? He believed the question sufficiently 
important to warrant its co.asideration by governments. 
He accordingly proposed postponement of the discus­
sion tmtil the following session of the Council. 

11. Sir Ramaswami MUDALIAR (India) acknow­
ledged that the question which had been raised warranted 
serious study. The League of Arab States had expressed 
a desire to be represented at the twelfth session of 'tihe 
Council, in view of the importance of the questions 
under consideration. 

12. He thought it would be wise, therefore, if, on the 
one hand, the Canadian delegation would withdraw its 
motion for postponement and, on the other, if the 
invitation in question were made to apply only to the 
twelfth session. The principle involved in extending a 
permanent invitation to certain international organi­
zations could be considered at some later time. 

13. Mr. PARKINSON (Canada) accepted the 
Indian representative's suggestion, provided that it was 
clearly understood that the question of principle would 
be examined at the thirteenth session. 

14. Mr. CORLEY SMITH (United Kingdom) 
shared the view of the Canadian representative; for his 
part, he would like to consult his Government before 
commenting on a question which would establish a 
precedent for which no provision was made in. the 
Council's rules of procedure. 

15. If it was agreed not to consider the Council's 
decision as a precedent, he thought the invitation in 
question could be extended, but for the Council's twelfth 
session only. 

16. Mr. FENAUX (Belgium) entertained the same 
doubts as the representatives of Canada and the United 
Kingdom. He considered the Indian representative's 
suggestion a happy one since it postponed any final 
decision. 

17. It would be useful, moreover, if tlie Secretary­
General would submit to the Council at its thirteenth 
session a memorandum explaining the position of 
)bservers representing regional organizations indicating 
tor example whether they were comparable to States 
Members of the United Nations which were not mem­
>ers of the Council. 

l8. :M:r. BURINSKY (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) stated that the amendment submitted by the 
United States had altered the situation; in accordance 
IVith the provisions of rule 55 of the rules of procedure, 

he asked that consideratior:. of the question be postponed 
for twenty~four hours. 

It was so decided. 

World economic situation (E/1907, E/1910, 
E/1910/ Add.1 and 2, E/1912, E/1912/ Add.l 
to 3 and E/C.2/280) (contin~ed) 

[Agenda item 3] 

19. Mr. CHANG (China) said that all the peoples of 
the world were waiting with bated breath to see wh~t 
new reasons for hope or despair the future might bring .. 
His delegation appreciated all sincere efforts at con­
scientious analysis of a very complex situation; but 
certain assertions :A.nd assumptions were intentionally 
misleading. 

,20. As a title for the first section of his observations 
he wished to quote words that would be found at the 
close of the Introduction of the World Economic R~port 
1949-1950. After describing the outlook as threatening, 
the report offered a somewhat more hopeful conclusion, 
It stated: "The economic development of the under 
developed countries remains the most important single 
long-run economic problem confronting the world. Its 
solution calls for a rapid expansion of the .world 
economy. Such an expansion could, if appropriately 
oriented, provide the goods and services needed to raise 
the living standards of two-thirds of the world popula­
tion, as well as the possibility of achieving without 
undue strain the economic adjustments that will be 
required in all parts of the world." 

21. He would use the words "if appropriately 
oriented" as the title foi' the first section of his observa­
tions. Th6ugh seemingly innocent, those words repre-· 
sented for the thoughtful a most challenging qualifica­
tion. The Council had begun its deliberations on the 
problem of the under-developed areas at its second 
session in 1946. On 4 June 1946 (7th meeting), his 
delegation had made a statement on the world 
significance of economically low-pressure .areas. He 
quoted the following passage from that statement: 

"We are too much drawn to the temporary existing 
contentions and conflicts. We must learn to envisage 
the world as a whole, giving due consideration to the 
economically less developed areas not only because 
of the huge populations and potential resources, not 
only because they supply the raw mat~rials and 
furnish the markets for the manufactured goods of 
the industrialized countries, but also because they 
serve as the meeting-:places for conflicts and conten­
tions of the industrialized Powers. It is in these 
.economically 'low-pressure' areas that we can detect 
and delineate the shape of things to come· in interna­
tional struggles, actual and potential." 

22. The under-industrialized areas, then, were the 
scene of conflicts between the industrialized Powers. 
rfhat led him to section I, part 1, of his observations, 
entitled: uThe centre and the periphery." There had 
been periods of expansion in history. The modem period 
of European expansion had been going on for approxi· 
mately four hundred years. The centre of that expan· 



456th Meeting- 6 March 1951 157 

sion had been Europe, but after 1917 new areas of 
power had emerged 0n the periphery. 

23. The under-developed areas were of course found 
on the outer fringe of that periphery, and it had always 
been difficult to decide what relative degrees of attention . 
should be devoted to the centre and the periphery. When 
areas of development had appeared on the outer peri­
phery, they had been apt to give more attention to the 
affairs of the former centre than to the under-developed 
areas on the outer pe~iphery. In the histo;y of. China 
there had been a period called "the warrmg States''. 
That period had lasted roughly for from 400 to 500 
years and had ended in the third century B.C. That had 
also been a period of expansion, the expansion taking 
place in all directions from a centre located in the middle 
part of the Yellow River Basin. It was very odd that 
towards the end of that period of expal}sion in China, 
two focal areas on the inner periphery had emerged 
predominant. · Had the final unification been effected 
under the influence of the area that paid more attention 
to the under-de~eloped outer periphery or to the one 
that paid less? He would leave the answer to be supplied 
by those who cared to study the facts. Surely it must be 
clear that the under-developed outer periphery should 
not be neglected. 

24. Section I, part 2, would be called "sympathetic 
understanding". He quoted the following from his 
statement of 4 June 1946: 

"Under-industrialized areas of today are no longer 
as subdued and overawed as they ·were before the 
First VV' orld War. I think you understand what I 
mean. They no longer follow without protest the 
docile orbits prescribed for them' by the powerful 
industrial nations. This applies especially to those 
countries which have experienced advanced degrees 
of cultural development at various times and in 
different aspe~ts before the impact of modern 
industrialism." 

25. Hunger for industrialization deserved sympathetic 
understanding. Mere material assistance was not 
enough. The under-developed peoples must receive 
imaginative, sympathetic understanding. In the world 
conflict, the side that would ~reat the peoples of the 
under-industrialized areas with sympathetic under­
standing would be likely to increase its influence. That 
remark he would also leave to those who studied the 
facts. 

26. The third part of section I was called utruth and 
freedom". Truths somehow always sounded more 
poignant and more convincing when expressed in a 
minor key. But those who were eager for powet asserted 
what might be called their "monistic intoleranceu. They 
were ruthless in their oppression of those who held 
different opinions. In that respect, however, the long 
history of China could ·show that the gentler philosophy 
of pluralistic· exploration had always managed to be 
closer to the hearts and minds of the people, and conse­
quently to last longer. Assertive repetition only exposed 
an inner lack of confidence. In Chinese history there 
had been two periods of ruthless monistic intolerance: 
the period of the first emperoJ.• of the Chin dynasty an<! 

the period of the Mongol invaders. However, neither 
period had lasted long. The use of slave labour in the 
building of the Great Wall of China under the first 
emperor had left among the Chinese people a hatred of 
tyranny; and the garrisoning of police in people's 
houses under the Mongols had caused revolt and 
resentment and shortened the period of the invaders~ 
power. He had so far commented on the section entitled 
"if appropriately oriented". Three points should not be 
lost sight of, namely, "the centre and the periphery", 
"sympathetic understanding" and "truth and freedom". 

27. He next came to section II, which he called ~ethe 
big bite", More than one speaker had openly described 
China as a kind of protectorate of the USSR. Would 
that not be a case of biting off more than one could 
chew? Those speakers had often claimed for the USSR 
and the People's J?emocracies a total population of 750 
million, of which, according to their estimate, 475 
million were Chinese. Would not such a big piece stick 
in the throat? Even thottgh some of it could b~ 
swallowed, would it not cause gnawing indigestion and 
even more painful disturbances? The situation might 
be compared to the case of Jonah and the whale, but 
with a very much bigger Jonah. Sooner than people 
realized, time wou,ld reveal the painful results of that 
terribly ambitious bite. 

28. With regard to the inclusion of the material 
relating to China in the Secretariat's report, he would 
like to ask a question : was the Secretariat conscious of 
the danger of misinterpretation that might result from 
the inclusion of material on China under the communist 
regime? Had the communist regime thus been admitted 
into the United Nations by a side door? Would that 
not be taken advantage of by those who were only too 
ready to gain such admission? After all, a rep(~rt of the 
United Nations wa:s not a purely academic affair. It was 
official. He therefore expected the Secretariat to give 
some explanation of that delicate and important 
question. 

29. With regard to the Secretariat's claim to objecti­
vity, he was ,afraid all liberals of nineteenth century 
vintage were extremely naive, too easily misled and 
manipulated by the doctrinaires who justified all means 
by their ends. Furthermore, there wa;s no way of con .. 
veying the amount of huma.n suffering underlying the 
cold figures. 

30. He ·would call section III of his· observations 
"the perspective." In praising some of the reforms 
introduced by the communist regime, one representativ€" 
had claimed that the situation was better now ·in China 
than it had been for thousands of years. Had China been 
backward for so long? Before answering that question, 
he would briefly advert to a number of facts a11.d 
figures illustrating the recon-struction effort in Taiwa~. 
(Formosa). 

31. The economy of Taiwan had been almost <;om­
pletely destroyed by Allied bombings during the war 
with Japan. When the Chinese Government had taken 
over, Taiwan's population of six million was left with 
insufficient mean's of production to maintain a normal 
§t{J:ndard of living. The government had had to pQ«t 



158 Economic and Social Councll -·Tweltth Session 

into the island money, machinery and skilled workers 
to fill the vacuum created by the .withdrawal from the 
island of all Japanese workers, who, in accordance with 
Japanese colonial policy, had formed the backbone of 
the island's economy. The progress made on the island 
during the five years after V "J Day, was one of the 
most encouraging signs of the vitality and efficacy of 
Chinese efforts. He would refer only to some of the 
items, and that briefly. · 

32. The first aspect of reconstruction with which he 
would deal was that of financial stabilization. That pro­
gramme had been embarked upon in earnest in the 
summer of 1949, when inflation had been general on the 
mainland owing to the impact of military exigencies. A 
new Taiwan currency had been introduced in ·place of 
the old one and put into circulation at· an . exchange rate 
of 40,000 to one. The new Taiwan dollar, as it was 
called, had been pegged to a definite international unit. 
The rate of c;xchange had been maintained, with prac­
tically no black market rate to speak of, for over one 
year, until the outbreak of the Kore.an War. In view of 
the alarming proportions assumed by inflation, which 
at that time engulfed the entire country, the ~onetary 
reform had undoubtedly been an important achievement, 
and had had a decidedly healthy effect on other ecO" 
nomic developments on the island. Even during the 
critical period from the time of the beginning of the 
Korean War to the end of 1950, when the stability of 
the new Taiwan dollar, like that of many other things 
'in East Asia, had been challenged, the new Taiwan 
dollar had managed to maintain its own, :fluctuating at 
times, but not reaching a rate of more than twice its 
original value. · 

33. From the point of view of the economics of every­
day life, the all-important matter in that connexion was 
price stabilization. It was true that prices had fluc­
tuated during that period, but the fluctuations had never 
at any time approached the magnitude of those then 
experienced by the rest of the country. As most of those 
fluctuations had been in the categories of luxury articles 
and imported goods, they had not seriously affected the 
daily needs of -the common people, the prices of which 
had been among the few things controlled by the 
government. Thanks to the success of the currency 
.stabilization programme, price control had not proved 
too difficult. 

34. Next came land reforms, which were perhaps the 
most outstanding achievement of Chinese social eco­
nomy, and not only in Taiwan, where, during 50 years 
of 1 apanese colonialism, the landlords had had all the 
say and the farmers practically none. The farmers had 
been at the mercy of the landlords, who, as the owners 
of the land, had been able practically to dictate the terms 
of rentals. That problem had always figured prominent­
·ly in Chinese social policy, but that policy had never 
been successfully carried out in full owing to the inter­
vening vicissitudes of politics and war. Real attempts to 
put. the policy into practice had been made in 1926. 
Then, in 1930, it had been formally included in the land 
laws promulgated by the Central Government. The 
difficulties of applying it, however, had been increased, 
first by internal. military disturbances aq<;\ then by 
Japanese aggresston. 

35. In 1949, the Government in Taiw.tn had revived 
tlwse· efforts. It had re-enacted in Taiwan a law pro­
mt\lgated by the government in 1930 providing that 
land rental should not exceed 37.5 per cent of the total 
yield of the land. That was now widely known as the 

· "375 land-rental reduction" programme. Formerly the 
farmer had had to surrender as much as 50 per cent or 
even 70 per cent of his yield to the landlord as rent, 
now he had to pay no more than 37.5 per cent. In the 
year and a half during which that new programme, 
sternly enforced by the government, had been in 
operation, amazing successes had already been achie-ved, 
In 1949, rice lands in Taiwan had yielded 1,740 kilo­
grammes of rice per "chia", wh~reas the same area of 
land before had yielded only 1,175 kilogrammes. That 
represented an increase of 560 kilogrammes of rice per 
"chia", or between 30 per cent and 50 per cent. 

36. He next dealt with production increases in 
Taiwan, and first with the increase in agricutural pro­
duction. As agdcultural products constituted 50 per 
cent of the total value of Taiwan's annual output, and 
rice accounted for about 70 per cent of the total agri­
cultural produce, it was clear that the land reform pro­
gramme resulting in the increased· yield of the .land 
briefly described above had a general economic signifiu 
cance almost as great as its social significance. Other 
important agricultural products, such as sugar-cane, 
tea, camphor, sweet potatoes, fruits, etc., had all shown 
substantial increases in output during the years 1949-
1950. 

37. Next to be considered was the increased output 
of minerals, of which Taiwan produ~ed about eighty. 
They included gold, silver, copper, coal, aluminium and 
·petroleum. Big strides had been made in 1949-1950. 
The position with regard to the production of coal had 
a direct bearing both on daily life and on general. indus­
trial production. At the time of the Japanese surrender, 
the total annual output of coal in Taiwan was 800,000 
tons. Since the Chinese Government had taken over, 
production of coal had been gradually stepped up: it 
had risen to 1,050,000 metric tons in 1946; 1,300,000 
tons in 1947; !,600,000 tons in 1948; 1,800,000 tons in 
1949; and approximately 2 million tons in 1950. Nego­
tiations had been in progress in 1950 for the export of 
Taiwan coal to Korea, Thailand and some other East 
Asian countries, where there was 2. coal shortage. 

38. He next referred· to increases in Taiwan'rJ indus­
trial output, and first to the increase in the output of 
electric power. As modern industries were mostly base.d 
on electric power, the increase in Taiwan's electnc 
power supply was perhaps a good gauge of other indus­
trial tendencies. Electric power had been in abundant 
supply in Taiwan before the Second World War. The 
highest capacity in those days had been quoted at one 
thousand million kilowatts for the peak year 1933. 
Owihg to the destruction caused by war, that had been 
cut down to 350 million kw. at the time of the Japanese 
surrender. Through repeated improvements, the suppl~ 
bad been brought back to 560 million kw. in 1947, anu 
to 830 million kw. in 1948. In 1949-1950, efforts had, 
been redoubled ; and the pre-war level had almost been 
reached as a result of the construction of two new power 



456th Meeiing- 6 March 1951 'lS9· 

plants1 the Tien-Fin hydraulic plant and the Li-Wu 
electricity plant. 

39. Next to be considered were fertilizers, the supply 
of which was of paramount importance as they were 
an indispensable item in Taiwan's main economic pur­
suit, agriculture. Although Taiwan had its own chemical 
fertilizer plants befo:re the Second World War, its 
annual output had never exceeded a meagre 20,000 
tons. On taking over the island, the Chinese Govern­
ment had at once made a serious effort to ~mprove the 
situation. Production was at present approximately 
5,000 tons a month, or 60,000 tons a year. Thus, the 
pre-war output had been tripled. 

40. Another important commctdity was textiles. As 
textile products were a neces,.dty in the daily life of the 
people, the increased outp·lt was also noteworthy. 
During the fifty years of Japanese oecupation, the 
textile industry in Taiwan had never gone beyond the 
capadty of 20,000 spindles. It had been even less than 
that when the Chinese Government had taken the island 
over. Now, after ,five years of improvement and labour, 
the Chinese Government had brought the total number 
of spindles in Taiwan up to about 50,000. That figure 
did not include spindles not yet in operation. 

41. Approximately one-fifth of the total a:rea of land 
under cultivation was being used for the production of 
sugar-cane. The sugar-refining industry therefore 
occupied a paramount position in the industry of 
Taiwan. In terms of sales value, refined sugar accounted 
for about 50 per cent of the whole industrial output of 
the proviJ:?.ce. 

42. Owing to the vast destruction of refineries caused 
by the Second World War. the total annual out­
put of refined sugar at the time of the Japanese sur­
render had been only 30,880 metric tons. After the 
Chinese Government had taken over and repair<:;d the 
damaged plants, the annual output had been steadily 
stepped up from year to year. In 1949, Taiwan's sugar 
output had amounted to over 631,000 metric tons. That 
tneant an approximately twenty-fold increase in pro­
duction, or an increase of 2,000 per cent. In 1950, that 
figure had been slightly reduced as a result of the gov­
ernment's programme to increase the production of rice. 
The annual output had been about 612,000 metric tons. 
Nevertheless, Taiwan was still one of the important 
suppliers of the world's sugar, as would be apparent 
from a study of Taiwan's international trade. 

43. The principal exports were sugar, tea, coal, 
citronella oil, camphor, lumber and fruits. Sugar and 
tea accounted for by far the major part of the export 
trade. Sugar exports in the first six months of 1950 
had been ·valued at more than 40 million US dollars,· 
and had been distributed over areas in Asia, . Europe 
and North America. 

44. Tea was a traditional Chinese export. Since the 
discontinuance of exports of tea. from the rest of China 
owit1g to disturbed conditions, Taiwan tea had been in 
great demand on the international market. · I11 Septem­
ber 1950, Taiwan's exports of tea ·had amounted to 
720,876 kilogrammes, and in October of the .same year 
to 916,978 kilogrammes. Those exports had been dis-

tributed over areas in Asia, . Europe, Asia Minor, 
Africa, and North and South America. 

45. Coal was mostly n~eded for the use of the grow­
ing industries, but there had been such an increase in 
output that exports had been reported for the year 
1949-1950. 

46. The improvement of labour conditions w~s an 
important factor in increasing production. There was 
nothing to compare in importance with the new over­
all social insurance policy for labour, which had been 
instituted by the Provincial Government of Taiwan. 
That kind of labour insurance was a new thir1g in 
China. It was a group insurance system, covering 
health, a~ddents at work, welfare and death -all kinds 
of insurance in one policy. The payment of premiums 
for such a policy was apportioned as follows : the 
policy-holder contributed 20 per cent, the employer 60 
per cent, ·and the government the remaining 20 per 
cent. The amount of insurance and the premiums for 
each policy were based on a computation of the policy­
holder's earning power. That system had been inau­
gurated in March 1950. Between the months of March 
and December 1950, a total of 559 industrial plants had 
joined the scheme. A total of 128,867 policies had been 
issued. During those first ten months of operation, a 
total of 5,886 cases had been settled, with the bene­
ficiaries receiving the benefits due to them under their 
policies. 

47. He then wanted to reply to the question : 11Has 
China. always been backward?" 

48. Until the end of the eighteenth century, more 
books had been published in Chir1a than in the rest of 
the world P,Ut together, Furthermore, up to the end 
of the eighteenth century, China had been an industrial 
and commercial Power with a favourable balance of 
trade. European thinkers, from Voltaire, Diderot, 
Leibnitz and Goethe in the eighteenth century to Tolstoy 
at the beginning of the twentieth century, had shown a 
very sincere appreciation of the character of Chinese 
civilization. Tolstoy had written : "The Chinese are th€:l 
oldest people in the world. The Chinese are the most 
populous people in the world. The Chinese are the 
most peacdul people in the world. They say : 'If a man 
claims that he is skilled in warfare, know that this man 
is a great criminal'." In one of Tolstoy's letters to 
Gandhi, he had particularly revealed his appreciation 
of the philosophy of Lao .. Tze. Tolstoy had shown 
particular appreciation for example, of the two follow­
ing sayings : "Return good for evil" and "The good I 
treat as good but the bad I also treat <M if they were 
good''. · · 

49. In conclusion, he would like to say that whoever 
attempted to fish itt the troubled waters of the turbulent 
sufferings of the Chinese people would receive his due 
reward in the inevitable and invincible awakening of 
that people. In the consciousness of the Chinese people 
there was . a very powerful iorce which might be 
described as "resiUent humanism". Like the bamboo, it 
n1ight be bent by the storm. but it would never break. 
When the storm passed, as all storms did, it would once 
again continue its growth in straight height. 



160 Economic and Social Council- Twelfth Session 

50. ·Mr. INGLES (Philippines) said he would like 
briefly to describe the economic situation in the Phil­
ippines so as to comply with the General Assembly's 
instructions of :2 December 1950, and because the 
Philippines was one of the Far Eastern countries 
covered by the World Econoptic Report 1949-1950; He 
would like to fill in certain possible gaps so as to give 
an accurate picture of the situation in his country. 

51. The Philippines had suffered the worst devasta­
tion during the war, in proportion to the area. At the 
time of the liberation, the country's industry, trade and 
agriculture had been practically paralysed ; the mines, 
sugar refineries, copra mills and factories had been in 
ruins. ·In fulfilment of its pledges, . the United States 
had paid claims for the restoration of public and private 
property destroyed by the war. The rehabilitation of 
the country was far from complete, however, especially 
since it was necessary not only to reconstruct but also 
to carry out development programmes that would 
enable the people to raise their standard of living. 

52. Turning to the Secretary-G~nera1's report, he 
pointed out that the index of agricultural and industrial 
production between 1949 and 1950 had risen from 91 
to 96 by comparison with 1937. The production of 
certain foodstuffs, on the other hand, particularly rice, 
the country's staple food, had risen above the pre-war 
level, though the per capita consumption was less than 
before the war owing to the bcrease in the population. 
It was calculated that the country would be self­
sufficient in rice in five years' time, for the area under 
cultivation was continuously increasing and efforts 
were being made to improve production by irrigation, 
farm mechanization and the use of fertilizers. ·The pro­
duction for export of minerals, metals, sugar, abaca, 
pineapples and coconuts-· had also increased by com­
parison with 1949. Notwithstanding the constant 
increase in production, the rehabihtation of the country 
was not yet complete. 

53. Since the end of the last war, the economy of the 
Philippines had also suffered from an adverse balance 
of trade. The payments made by the United States since 
the war, which had considerably reduced the adverse 
balance in the pa~t, were no longer a factor to be 
reckoned with in the future. The tightening of import 
and· exchange contmls~ as well as the imposition of 
credit restrictions at the end of 1949, had made it pos­
sible . to check the decrease in reserves of foreign 
currency. Since .1949, imports had declined by 35 per 
cent. The restrictions had affected consumer goods, 
whilst imports o~ raw materials and capital goods had 
continued to increase. Exports, on the other hand, had 
increased by 26 per cent, a circumstance which had 
reduced the deficit. in the trade balance to 93 million 
pesos in 1950 as compared with 629 million in 1949. 
During the .first half of 1950, demand deposits had 
increased by 71 million pesos. There had been a general 
increase. in the retail prices of · imported .consumer 
goods, the supply of which :had .been curtailed. . The · 
retail prices of domestic· produce, on the other hand, 
had gone down, together with the wholesale priees . of 
export commodities. :To combat inflation, the govern­
ment had had to fix ceiling prices for .commodities of 
prime necessity. · 

54. Thus, it inust be said that the beginning of 1950 
had shown a tendency to inflation which, in spite of 
some fluctuations, had become more marked owing to 
the ,outbreak of the Korean war. The conflict in that 
country had caused an increase in demand which in 
turn had produced an increase in the prices of export 
and import commodities of primary importance and in 
the prices of local goods. Bank credits also had 
expanded, and there had been an increase in reserves 
of foreign currencies. The fact that the currency circu­
lation had risen from 513 to 613 million pesos in Sep­
tember 1950 was the best proof of the inflationary 
tendency in the country. 

55. The government's budgetary deficit had increased 
as a result of a fall in tax collections occasioned by the 
drop in imports and not by a drop in exports as the 
passage in chapter 3 of ·the report concerning the 
Philippines seemed to imply. Internal revenue, being 
derived chiefly from taxes on business, was highly 
sensitive to changes in the volume of trade. The gov­
ernment, which had curtailed its regular expenditure 
had once again · been obliged to provide credits for 
extraordinary expenditure due to internal disturbance, 
and had had to seek outside assistance. In that con­
nexion he would like to pay particular ·tribute to the 
International Monetary Fund for the understanding 
and co-operative spirit it had displayed. On 1 January 
1951, the Executive had put into effect a plan for the 
reorganization of government services designed to 
secure greater efficiency and economy. New fiscal legis­
lation was being prepared, the loans obtained by the · 
government being only a temporary expedient which 
was necessary until such time as the results of the new 
fiscal system made it possible to balance revenue and 
expenditure. 

56. He wished to point out to the USSR representa­
tive that the extraordinary expenditures which the Gov­
ernment of the Philippines had been obliged to under­
take were not due to economic causes : subversive 
elements had infiltrated into the country and sought to 
indoctrinate a certain section of the population and 
teach it techniques of disturbing p4blic order. The 
aggression committed in Korea had made the Phil­
ippines still more conscious of the threat hanging over 
the free world, and the government had therefore 
decided to strengthen the country's defences. He 
thought the USSR representative should know that the 
temporary financial difficulties with which the Phil­
ippines was at present faced were largely due, not to 
what he called American imperialism, but to another 
imperialism which was now being let loose on Asia. 

57. · The total agricultural production and production 
of the manufacturing and extractive industries were 
constantly increasing. Economic development pro­
grammes had been initiated with ·a view not only to 
rehabilitating the rre~war industries but also to devel­
oping them. The Philippines was concerned as to how 
far the increased demand for strategic r~v· materials 
induced by the · international ·situation wou£d affect 
national ecm1omic development programmes. Industrial 
project) which were still pending because of lack ··of 
capital seemed farther away frrm realization with the 
exp,ected shortage of capital goods. The Government of 



456th Meeting- 6 March 1951 161 

the Philippines had tried the usual methods of curbing 
inflation, but considered that the measures adopted by 
individual governments should b~ supplemented by 
international co-operation. 

58. Proceeding to consider the situation of the under­
developed countries in relation to the rearmament pro­
grammes of the great Powers, he recalled that the rep­
resentative of Chile had pointed out that those countries 
were more or less obliged to devote their energy to the 
production of strategic raw materials. Greater than the 
danger of loss of markets which would face them upon a 
return to normalcy, would be the perpetuation of a 
colonial economy which would condemn them to be 
mere suppliers of raw materials for the mills and fac­
tories of the highly industrialized countries. The Non­
Self-Governing and Trust Territories were particu­
larly exposed to that danger for, in mosf' cases, their 
populations had no say as to the form of their economic 
development, or they woke up too late to be able to do 
anvthing about it. 

59. The Philippine delegation· therefore hoped that 
action would be taken to encourage the production not 
only of strategic raw materials but also of foodstuffs by 
promoting a diversification of the economy and indus­
trial development. In that connexion, he pointed out 
that the distinction between developed and under­
developed countries amounted in the last 1 esort to a 
distinction between industrialized and under-indus­
trialized countries. The only way of bridging the gap 
was to industrialize the under-developed countries. The 
measures calculated to secure such a development might 
perfectly well be adopted within the framework of 
international collaboration provided for in the Charter 
ofthe United Nations. In that connexion, he would add 
that the economic strength of the free world would 
count for nothing if the economies of the countries of 
which it was composed were not likewise stable and 
strong. 

60. The Philippine delegation was therefore heart-

Printed in Canada 

ened by the statements of the United States representa­
tive to the effect that expansion of production, even of 
goods unrelated to the military programme, could, by 
improving economic and social conditi.ons, contribute to 
the common security. It was also encouraged by the 
assurance of the Government of the United States that 
it would provide technical and financial assistance to 
help in expanding production in other countries. Mili­
tary requirements had, of course, the prime claim which 
might lead to a revision of those programmes of assis­
tance. He hoped that that would not be necessary, how­
ever, and was more optimistic than the Indian repre­
sentative in that connexion. 'Vithout belittling the 
importance of the aid which the Philippines had 
already received from the United States, he would like 
to point out that, of the 26,000 million dollars which 
the United States had contributed in the form of assis­
tance up to the end of 1949, only 2,600 millions had 
been reE;erved for the countries of the Far East, 
although that region possessed almost half the popula­
tion of the world and was composed chiefly of countries 
where the per capita income was the lowest in the 
world. 

61. The Philippines had also been very much per­
turbed when, at the most critical moment of the Korean 
campaign, it had been suggested that the defences of the 
free world should be contracted. He was glad that that 
suggestion had not been acted upon. The people of the 
Philippines were prepared to make sacrifices on behalf 
of the common effort, as they had shown during the 
last war, but they hoped their interests would not be 
neglected. The Philippine delegation hoped that the 
irresistible march of events in the Far East, which were 
shaping the destinies not only of that region but of the 
entire world, had sufficiently 4emonstrated that the. 
defence of the free world required not only the 
strengthening of · the traditional citadels of western 
civilization, but also the building up of the beleaguered 
outposts of democracy wherever they might be. 

The meeting rose at 1.5 p.m. 

90600-Aprii 1951-3,250 




